
 
FI DIVISION, PC  & FI WING, HO BANGALORE 

    
TENDER REFERENCE NO: PC&FI:FID:RFP:01:2013 DATED 28.02.2013 
 

REPLY TO PRE BID QUERIES 
 

Sl 
No 

Page 
No 

Clause 
No 

Clause Query by Bidder 
Reply by 

Bank 

1 8 2.9 Each BCA will cover all the 
villages in the Gram Panchayat(s) 
allotted to that BCO. It is 
expected that each BCA will cater 
about 1500 households. Provided 
however, that in case, more than 
one BCA is allotted for any gram 
Panchayat on account of Sub 
Service Area approach, their 
respective areas would be 
specifically defined. 

Bank may please clarify if 
the BCA has to cover 1500 
household. In our 
experience, BCA can 
handle not more than 700-
800 card holders at the 
best 1000 card holders 

RFP clause 
stands 

2 9 5 Annual turnover should not be 
less than Rs. 5(five) crores in the 
last financial year as per audited 
financial statement. 

Bank may please clarify if 
the turnover of the fully 
owned parent company 
can be applied to fulfill 
this eligibility criteria. 

Refer point 
no 4 , page no 
9 

3 12 7.18 Financial Exposures & 
Performance risks from third-
party service providers under the 
project would be regulated and 
mitigated through Financial 
Guarantees, Collateral Securities, 
etc based on risk perception of 
the Bank. 

We request the bank to 
remove the “Collateral 
Securities” 

Refer 
Amendment 
to the RFP 



4 15 11.9 The solution provided by the 
Bidder,i.e. the technological 
solution together with the 
human resources shall be able to 
support deposit taking, lending, 
account management, financial 
literacy and advice, remittances, 
electronic benefit 
payments/transfer, etc. 

Bank may elaborate on 
the provision required for  
“Financial Literacy” 

To create 
awareness 
about the 
banking 
products 
available. 
  
The selected 
bidder will be 
informed 
about the 
details 

5 29 22.9 The Bidder will have to deposit 
Earnest Money Deposit along 
with the Bids by an account 
payee Draft favoring CANARA 
BANK and payable at Bangalore. 

We request the Bank to 
accept Bank Guarantee as 
EMD as an option to 
Demand Draft 

Refer 
Amendment 
to the RFP 

6 36 24.3 Commercial bids shall be opened 
in the presence of authorized 
representatives of the qualified 
bidders and the commercial 
values quoted by each bidder 
shall be read out. All the 
authorized representatives of the 
bidders present at the time 
should sign in a register so as to 
confirm their attendance. 

Since its reverse online 
action. We presume that 
this commercial bid 
opening is Indicative 
Commercial Bid. Bank may 
please clarify. 

RFP clause 
stands 

7 44 36.3.1 Bidder/s have to implement the 
solution in the Ten pilot locations 
in each cluster of the Bank and 25 
accounts to be opened and 
transact in each locations as per 
this RFP and come out with 
changes / customization which 
bidder/s has/have to address / 
resolve / change and rectify the 
reported bugs, if any, during the 
period of Pilot Implementation 
without any extra cost to the 
Bank. All requirements of the 
Bank should be complied in Pilot 
implementation itself. 

Bank may please clarify if 
the 10 village pilot would 
be a paid pilot. 

It will not be a 
paid pilot. 



8 46 37.1.7  If the NPAs in the loans sourced 
by BCA are abnormally high, that 
is, the percentage of NPAs in the 
loans sourced by the BCA is 
higher than the Gross NPAs of 
the branch 

We presume that all loans 
will be sanctioned by the 
bank only after due 
procedure is followed by 
the bank and BCA only 
facilitates and connects 
the loan customer to the 
bank. If this assumption of 
is ours right. Then review 
of services of BCA’s based 
on NPA’s may be not be 
fair. Bank may please 
reconsider. 

RFP clause 
stands 

9 2 b Devices should have capability to 
connect directly to intermediate 
server and process through 
Bank’s gateway in the banking 
mandated standard ISO format. 

We request the bank to 
provide the location of 
Disaster Recovery Centre 
server and may please 
clarify if bank will provide 
connectivity between DC 
& DRC. 

Bank will 
provide the 
connectivity 
facility 
between DC 
and DRC. 
Details will be 
made known 
to the 
selected 
bidder. 

10 17 1  Display of signage as approved 
by the Bank. 

Signage is generally 
provided by the bank. 
Please confirm if bank will 
provide the Signage 

Bank will 
provide the 
signage. 

11 46 1 1.(b) Cost of Smart Card 64 K 
(customer) 

Bank may please clarify 
the quantity to be 
mentioned in the Total 
Price column 

No of smart 
cards : 
4.5/3.25/3.25 
lacs apporx. 
in cluster 
A/B/C 
respectively 

12 46 2 Bank has Presently 10 lacs 
account holders under the FI, and 
additional 11 lacs accounts which 
are to be opened. Bank is 
expecting an average of six 
transactions of Rs 500/- each per 
card per year. 

Bank may please provide 
the cluster wise break up 
of the existing 10 lakh 
accounts 

6.5/1.75/1.75 
lac in cluster 
A/B/C 
respectively, 
approximately. 



13 18 13.2.11.4  Payments will be made on a 
monthly basis for all the 
Personalised Cards delivered 
during the previous month. 

Bank may please clarify 
whether the card 
activation clause is 
applicable for claiming 
cost of services for 
personalization or just the 
delivery of the smart card 
and an acknowledgement 
received from respective 
branches will suffice the 
requirement for claiming 
cost of services for 
personalization. 

Refer  clause 
13.2.11.2 and 
38.2 

14 18 13.3.16 The number of transaction 
history stored in the card would 
depend on the availability of 
memory on the card and would 
be decided mutually by the Bank 
and the Bidder 

Bank may please clarify 
when will Bank decide on 
the memory on card? Now 
or after project allotment. 

Smart card – 
memory 32K 

15 18 13.3.19  If the card is not utilized for a 
certain period, it may require re-
activation by the authorized 
representative of the Bank. The 
period will be specified by the 
Bank. 

We request the bank to 
provide the reactivation 
period? 

The card will 
de activated if 
there is no 
transaction 
through the 
smart card 
for 24 
months. 
 
The re 
activation will 
be done on 
the request 
of the 
customer 
with in 48 
hours. 
 
 



16 19 13.3.20 In case the card is lost by the 
account-holder, the matter shall 
be reported to the BCAs, who 
will record the necessary 
information and send the 
application/request to the Bank 
for issuance of duplicate card.  

Bank may please clarify 
the procedure to claim the 
cost of the card lost by the 
customer. 

To be claimed 
once the 
duplicate card 
is 
issued/person
alized and a 
successful 
transaction is 
completed. 

17 23 18.2   BCOs which are identified as 
Ultra small Branches, In addition 
to the BC activities mentioned in 
the RFP, Ultra Small branch shall 
function as per working hours of 
the base branch. The weekly / 
public holidays of Ultra Small 
branch shall be as applicable to 
the base branch. However the 
BCAs can perform transactions in 
the Hand Held Machines (HHM) 
as per timings permitted under 
the cash management system 
stipulated. 

Bank may please clarify if 
the bank will bear the cost 
of Ultra Small Branches 
for example…branch rent, 
infrastructure set up, 
connectivity etc. 

YES. The cost 
of HHM  and 
connectivity  
is to be borne 
by the BC. 

18 1 Part II Cluster A: Karnataka, Goa, Kerala 
Tamilnadu and Pondicherry 
No of habitations /villages /wards 
: 1900 

If we are going with 
cluster A, then OAP (Old 
Age Pension) 
disbursement rates should 
be quoted separately as 
we have this OAP clause 
with all the existing clients 
at TN. 
Important: Whether Bank 
will carryout training or 
workshop/seminar session 
for all respective branch 
managers on FI process & 
procedures with CMS. Or 
if Bank requires the Bidder 
to carry out the same, will 
Bank pay Bidder towards 
the expenses for the 
same. 

RFP Clause 
stands. 
 
 
 
 
 
Training 
needs of the 
branch 
officials will 
be taken care 
of by the 
Bank 



19 9 13.4.8 The printout shall also contain 
commission payable to the 
Bidder. 

Bank may please clarify if 
only the cost of 
operations which is to be 
quoted per Rs.100 needs 
to be computed and 
printed  

The total 
amount 
transacted 
for the day 
and the cash 
handling 
charges ( For 
BCA and BC 
separately) 
for the 
amount to be 
calculated 
and printed in 
the report.  

20 46 37.3 The Business Correspondent 
should make use of the existing 
bio-metrics/smart cards issued in 
case of acquisition from the 
existing vendors 

We cannot make use of 
the smart cards issued by 
other vendors. As they 
would have used their 
own keys for encryption 
of date & file structure. 
Bank may please 
reconsider 

RFP clause 
stands.  

21 8 Part II Card operating system shall be 
compliant with SCOSTA-CL 
standard of Government of India 

As per the official website 
of SCOSTA (NIC), currently 
there are no Contact Type 
Smart Cards with SCOSTA-
CL OS. Bank may clarify 
whether we can supply 
SCOSTA 64K Contact 
Cards with SCOSTA v 1.2b 
SCOSTA certified Smart 
Cards 

RFP clause 
stands 

22 8 Appn. II The cards should be capable of 
supporting EMV 
standard/specifications in future. 

The SCOSTA-CL smart 
cards do not have options 
for enabling EMV 

Refer 
amendment 
to the RFP 



specifications in the future 
as the same has to be 
made available in the OS 
before it is loaded into the 
chip. Whether Bank is 
looking at dual interface 
cards with EMV and 
SCOSTA-CL OS in the same 
card. In such case the cost 
of the card will increase. 
Bank may clarify the need 
for EMV standard support 
in the Smart Cards? 

23 8 Appn. II Key Length Supported (1024 to 
2048) 

Though there is memory 
available to store a key of 
length 1024 or 2048, the 
SCOSTA-CL OS supports 
only Symmetric Key 
(DES/TripleDES algorithm) 
only which requires a key 
of length 128 only. Bank 
may clarify the exact 
requirement for key 
length of 1024 or 2048 

RFP clause 
stands  

24 9 Appn. II Should specify the breakup of 
the space allocated in the smart 
card for various requirements 
like User Certificates, Smart Card 
Operating system, Applications 
provided by the smart card 
Bidder, Customized application 
and future applications. 

The SCOSTA-CL card 
follows file based 
architecture in the card 
instead of 
application/applet based 
as used in Java cards. Also 
it does not store user 
certificates. Hence it will 
be difficult to provide the 
space allocated for user 
certificates, applications 
etc. Bank may kindly 
remove this clause. 

Refer 
amendment 
to the RFP  

25 11 Appn. II Should be capable of 
transactions through EMV 
standard cards in future. 

As per the latest Micro 
ATM standards 1.5, only 
devices accepting Card & 

Refer 
amendment 
to the RFP 



PIN must be EMV Level 1 
and Level 2 certified. Only 
such devices can accept 
EMV standard cards. As 
per section 13.3, customer 
will be authenticated 
through fingerprint. Also 
only few vendors will have 
EMV certified terminals 
with Fingerprint sensor, 
thereby increasing the 
dependency on few 
vendors. Hence Bank may 
clarify the need for EMV 
Certified terminal to 
accept EMV standard 
cards. 

26 13 8.15 Bidder shall confirm that every 

person  deployed by them on the 

project has been vetted through 

third-party background check 

prior to their engagement. 

Reference from two respectable 

persons of that area known to 

the bank should be submitted to 

the bank prior to their 

engagement. 

For the BCA engagement 
the reference will taken 
from the any respectable / 
reputed person from the 
area and as accepted by 
branch official. We assume 
the same under this point. 

RFP Clause 
Stands. 

27 15 11.2 The authentication of 
transactions would be through 
matching the biometrics/fresh 
sample of fingerprint with the 
minutiae on the smartcard/ UIDAI 
server or remote authentication 
server. 
  
  
  
  

In case of online 
transactions, it will 
Happen based on Aadhaar 
or account number and 
the biometric 
authentication will happen 
at UIDAI or remote 
authentication server. 
Hence is smartcard  
equired for online 
transactions? For offline 
transactions, fingerprints 
should be present in the 
Smartcard. 

 RFP clause 
stands. 



28 14 9.7 Bidder shall undertake  
personalization of cards, Card 
Management System and Key 
Management using Bidder’s own 
assets and personnel. 
  

It is told that Bidder has to 
undertake personalization 
of cards, where as in Page 
16 of RFP point 12.11: 
Having captured the 
enrolment data, the 
Bidder will securely store 
and 
transmit the information 
required for  Card 
Personalization to the 
location authorised by the 
Bank. Please clarify 

Refer 
amendment 
to RFP 

29 18 13.3.4 Customer is permitted to 
transact in online mode only 
through the Handheld device 
(such as POS). 
  
  
  

Since the solution will be 
online based, Please 
clarify on the consistent 
connectivity availability in 
the service areas allotted. 
In case, if the connectivity 
is not available, is bank 
ready to deny the 
transaction? 

RFP Clause 
stands 

30 20 15.1.6 Key Management System – Key 
management system should be 
deployed centrally for the Bank 
and it should permit security 
framework of interoperability 
between bank terminals 
although the terminals are 
supplied by different Bidders. 
  

In order to support the 
same, bank has to give the 
Key for enabling the KMS 
inter operability between 
bank terminals with 
multiple vendors. And the 
KMS will be applicable for  
smart cards only, not for 
other cards such as plastic 
card / magnetic strip card 

Bank may 
implement 
common key 
management 
system for 
interoperabili
ty as per the 
directives 
from NPCI/ 
DFS/MOS/GOI 

31 Page
:8 of 
Anne 
xure 
Docu 
ment 

Point P The cards should be capable of 
supporting EMV standard/ 
specifications in future. 
  
  
  
  

As the current IDBRT 
standards does not define 
the EMV standards, 
the Smart cards supplied 
now are not guaranteed 
to support EMV standards 
in future  

Refer 
Amendment 
to RFP 



32 Page 
:8 of 
Anne 
xure 
Docu 
ment
  
  
  
  

Point P The Smartcard must conform to 
the latest version of Open 
Standards for Smartcard based 
Solutions for Financial Inclusion 
by IDRBT. 
 

Since the Industry is 
derived on the 
completeness of the IBA-
IDRBT specifications, 
Bidder assumes that IBA-
IDRBT standard will be 
used as a reference. For 
example, KMS is only 
defined as a concept by 
IDRBT, not defined to the 
level of implementation. 
Also there is no 
certification body to 
certify the compliance. 
Please clarify. 

RFP clause 
stands.  
  
  
  
  
  
  

33 9 7 Bidder should also have internal 
control and audit measures in 
place. 
Copy of latest Audit Report. 
  

Is bank means the ISO 
audit or financial audit? If 
ISO audit, is the ISO 
certificate is required to 
submit along with the 
same? 

Financial 
audit 

34 9 2 The bidder should have been a 
BC/SP for providing FI solution 
(such as EBT, DBT, Aadhaar 
based Payment etc.) for a large 
Private Sector Bank or a Public 
Sector Bank 
for a minimum period of 12 
months. 
The solution should have been 
implemented in at least in 250 
locations in India. The bidder 
should have necessarily 
implemented the solutions at 
least at 100 locations successfully 
in the cluster area for which the 
bid is submitted. 

We assume the 
experience is in FI or EBT 
or DBT or ABPS for the 
period of 12 months. 

RFP clause 
stands. 
 

35 11 7.10 The solution should conform to 
and integrate with micro-ATM 
and mobile-banking solution 
proposed by Inter-Ministerial 
Group recommendations for 
Financial inclusion. 

Is bank want Micro-ATM 
or Mobile- banking 
solution for the FI 
implementation 
integration? 
  

Refer 
Amendment 
to RFP  



36 13 8.21 Cash Management is the sole 
Responsibility of BC 
  
  
  

Bank has to give interest 
free OD facility for the BC 
to enable this service, 
otherwise practically it is 
Difficult for the TSP to 
manage the cash for the 
transaction. 

RFP clause 
stands. 

37 14 9.10 The Bidder shall provide 
hardware, software, personnel, 
technical services, connectivity; 
maintenance, provide training 
and operational support for the 
end-to-end infrastructure 
supporting the Canara Bank 
Financial Inclusion Plan including 
the handheld devices, enrolment 
system, digital fingerprint 
scanners, digital cameras 
printers, intermediate switching, 
backend 
Banking software, etc. 

What backend banking 
software mean here? 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Refer 
Amendment 
to RFP  

38 15 9.20 Bidder shall ensure that faulty 
front-end equipment should be 
got repaired or replaced within 
24 hours of reporting 
  
 

As the villages are remote 
location to understand the 
fault condition and to 
repair, it would take 5-7 
days considering the 
logistic of sending the 
equipment, as these 
repairs are done at a 
service location. So as 
practically it is not 
possible, please change it 
to 5 days instead of 24 
hours. 

RFP clause 
stands 

39 3 Annexur
e 2  
Point C 

The Service Provider should 
upgrade the technology, at its 
own cost, to meet the standards 
as may be set by IBA/ 
IDRBT/NPCI/RBI in future. 
  
  

The software can be 
upgradable as per the 
IBA/IDRBT / NPCI / RBI. 
However, the hardware 
specification major change 
is difficult and is not 
feasible, as in it uncertain 
on the requirement of 
these regulatory bodies 

RFP clause 
stands 

40 8 2 The bidder should have been a 
BC/SP for providing FI solution 
(such as EBT, DBT, Aadhaar 
based Payment etc.)  for a large 
Private Sector Bank or a Public 

We request the Bank to 
allow also TSP as the 
Prime Bidder 

The RFP 
condition 
does not 
exclude 
Technology 



Sector Bank  for a minimum 
period of 12 months. 

Service 
provider as 
prime bidder 

41 11 6.1 Bank is planning to extend ICT-BC 
based outlets in about 3600 
locations covering about 6700 
villages in India.   
 

Request the bank to 
clarify that whether bank 
will require 3600 BCO or 
one BCO will handle 
multiple locations. 

There will be 
3600 BCO 
locations 
apporx.  Each 
BCA has to 
service either 
one village or 
more than 
one village. 

42 14 9.4 The Proposed solutions may be 
rolled out to cover various other 
products and services to other 
customers as well, in any part of 
the country, as may be identified 
by the bank. 

Request from bank to 
clarify what are the other 
products they are 
planning to integrate in 
the proposed solution. 

The solution 
should 
integrate 
with the 
products 
available in 
the CBS 
software 
through 
Bank’s 
gateway. 

43 14 9.5 The solutions should have 
adequate provision to support 
marketing of Bank's other 
products such as deposits, loans, 
fee-based products such as 
insurance premium, remittances, 
etc which bank may plan at a 
later date. 

Request from bank to 
clarify how long time bank 
will take to decide the 
date for above. 

Existing 
products 
During pilot 
testing itself. 
New products 
as and when 
Bank plans. 

44 45 36.3.3  Bidder/s to complete entire pilot 
project in a reasonable time not  
exceeding 30 days from the date 
of award of contract. 

Request  bank to increase 
the pilot project 
implementation period 30 
days to 3 month because 
as per Appendix-II, 1st BCC 
will be appointed and 
under the BCC, BCS will be 
appointed and each BCS 
will appoint the BCA in the 
individual Village and 
operation could be done 
after appointment of BCA. 

RFP clause 
stands. 

45 45 36.3.5  Appointment of BCAs in all the 
Identified villages within 30 days 
from the date of placing 
individual orders in all identified 

Request  bank to increase 
the on boarding period 30 
days to 3 month because 
as per Appendix-II, 1st BCC 

RFP clause 
stands 



villages. will be appointed and 
under the BCC, BCS will be 
appointed and each BCS 
will appoint the BCA in the 
individual Village. 

46 45 36.5   Period of Contract :- The period 
of contract shall initially be for a 
period of 5(five) years from date 
of acceptance. Bank also 
reserves its right to renew the 
contract after 5 years on the 
same terms and conditions of 
mutually agreed terms and 
conditions between the bank and 
the selected bidder. In case of 
shifting of the services to a new 
service provider, due to 
deficiency in the services 
extended by selected bidder 
during the period of the contract 
or due to policy changes, which 
warrants switching over to new 
solution, the existing selected 
bidder shall extend all required 
support for smooth switch over. 

We request the bank to 
clarify on the following:  
1.      Should vendors 
expressly factor in any 
hardware and device 
refresh costs into the 
engagement model  
2.    If different vendors 
interpret differently the 
price comparisons may 
not work out efficiently.  

Refer 
amendment 
to the RFP 

47 47 38.2  An additional  amount of Rs 500/- 
will be paid to the Business 
Correspondent where the BC 
outlets are 
converted/functioning as ultra 
small branches(USB).  

Request  bank to clarify 
that how many BC outlet 
are expected to  be 
converted to USBs 

Presently the 
Bank has 541 
USBs. The 
number of 
USBs does’nt 
have any 
bearing on 
the costing. 

48    Append
ix-I 

Number of Locations Cluster 
wise to be covered by the 
Business Correspondent in India. 
Appendix-I 

Request  the bank to 
provide the no. of district 
to  be covered for the 
locations given in 
Appendix-I 

Bank has 
presence in 
477 districts 
in India and 
planning to 
cover all the 
districts.  



49  Appendi
x -II, 
Section 
M -  

Voice guidance in local language 
should be provided for 
transactions to  enable the 
customers to follow the 
transactions. 
I 

In rural areas it is more 
important to have voice 
guidance in local language 
rather then receipts in 
local language. Bank is 
requested to HHM with 
voice guidance in local 
language but receipt 
printing in English 

RFP clause 
stands 

50  Appendi
x -II, 
Section P 
-  

The personnel information will 
have name, date of birth, date of 
issue, validity, residential 
address, Aadhaar number if 
available, instruction to return 
the card if found lost, etc. printed 
on it. 

Can Insta Cards be given? 
These cards will have all 
the biometric data, the 
design and logo as agreed 
but it will not have the 
Customer's details like 
name, DOB, photo printed 
on this card 
Many banks prefer these 
cards for the following 
reasons: 
1. Card activation rate is 
significantly higher 
2. Customer satisfaction is 
much higher 
3. Customer start 
transacting earlier 
4. Cost effective  
Bank is requested to 
accept insta card. 

Insta cards 
are out of the 
scope of the 
RFP 

52  Bill of 
Material 
- 
Appendi
x-XII, 
Section 2 
Cost of 
operatio
ns) 

Bank has presently 10 lacs of 
account holders under the FI, and 
additional 11 lacs accounts which 
are to be opened. Bank is 
expecting an average of Six 
transactions of Rs 500-/ each per 
card per year. 

Request from bank to 
clarify that what is the no. 
of transaction mentioned 
in RFP does not happened. 

The cash 
handling 
charges will 
be on the 
actual value 
of the 
amount 
transacted. 

52  General 
Query 

Can the enrolment be done using 
laptop, tablet or it can done 
using Hand Held terminal , please 
clarify 

  

Data should 
be captured 
through the 
device used 
at the BCO. 



 
 
 
 

BANGALORE         GENERAL MANAGER 
18.03.2013 
 

53  General 
Query 

Request  bank to clarify where 
the Data center and Disaster 
recovery will be located i.e. at 
Bank premises or vendor 
premises   

At Bank 
Premises 


